
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Daljit Lally, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk 
  

    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Lesley Little 
Email: lesley.little@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622614 
Date: Thursday, 18 February 2021 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 

 

Your attendance is requested at a virtual meeting of the STRATEGIC PLANNING 
COMMITTEE to be held on TUESDAY, 2 MARCH 2021 at 4.00 PM. 

Please note this will be a “virtual meeting” that will be streamed live on our Youtube 
channel at youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV 

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Daljit Lally 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Strategic Planning Committee members as follows:- 

C Horncastle (Chair), T Thorne (Vice-Chair), E Armstrong, L Bowman, R Dodd, B Flux, 
J Foster, R Gibson, J Gobin, A Hepple, J Lang, J Reid, G Renner-Thompson, Stewart, 
M Robinson and I Swithenbank 

Any member of the press or public may view the proceedings of this virtual meeting live 
on our YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV.  Members of 
the press and public may tweet, blog etc during the live broadcast as they would be able 
to during a regular Committee meeting. However, the only participants in the virtual 
meeting will be the Councillors concerned and the officers advising the Committee. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV


 
Strategic Planning Committee, 2 March 2021 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
 

1.   PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT A VIRTUAL STRATEGIC 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(Pages 1 
- 2) 

2.   ATTENDANCE AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

3.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
The Minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on Tuesday 2 
February 2021, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record and signed 
by the Chair.  
 

(Pages 3 
- 8) 

4.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required to disclose any personal interest (which includes 
any disclosable pecuniary interest) they may have in any of the items 
included on the agenda for the meeting in accordance with the Code of 
Conduct adopted by the Council on 4 July 2012, and are reminded that if 
they have any personal interests of a prejudicial nature (as defined under 
paragraph 17 of the Code Conduct) they must not participate in any 
discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. NB Any 
member needing clarification must contact the monitoring officer by email 
at monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Please refer to the guidance 
on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
 

 

5.   DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
To request the committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
this report using the powers delegated to it.   
 
Please note that printed letters of objection/support are no longer 
circulated with the agenda but are available on the Council’s website 
at  http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx 
 

(Pages 9 
- 14) 

6.   20/03097/FUL 
 
Proposed erection of Roadside Services comprising a Petrol Filling 
Station and Ancillary Retail Unit, Drive-Thru Coffee Shop and 
Associated Landscaping and Works.  
Land North Of Bernicia Headquarters, Ashwood Drive, Ashwood 
Business Park, Ashington, Northumberland 
 

(Pages 
15 - 34) 

7.   APPEALS UPDATE 
 

(Pages 
35 - 44) 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx


 
Strategic Planning Committee, 2 March 2021 

For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This 
is a monthly report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area 
Council Planning Committee areas and covers appeals of Strategic 
Planning Committee 
 

8.   S106 AGREEMENTS UPDATE REPORT 
 
For Members’ information to report the agreement monitoring and 
collection of s106 contributions in the planning process.  This is a monthly 
report and relates to agreements throughout Northumberland during the 
previous monthly period 
 

(Pages 
45 - 50) 

9.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 
To consider such business, as in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 



 

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 March 2021 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussion or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

Name (please print):  

Meeting:  

Date:  

Item to which your interest relates:  

  

Nature of Registerable Personal Interest i.e either disclosable pecuniary interest (as 
defined by Annex 2 to Code of Conduct or other interest (as defined by Annex 3 to Code 
of Conduct) (please give details):  

  

  

 

 

 

Nature of Non-registerable Personal Interest (please give details): 

  
  
  
 
 
 
  

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting? 

  

 
1. Registerable Personal Interests – You may have a Registerable Personal Interest if the 
issue being discussed in the meeting: 
  
a)     relates to any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined by Annex 1 to the Code of 
Conduct); or 



 
Strategic Planning Committee, 2 March 2021 

 b)   any other interest (as defined by Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct)  

The following interests are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests if they are an interest of either you 
or your spouse or civil partner:  
  
(1) Employment, Office, Companies, Profession or vocation; (2) Sponsorship; (3) Contracts 
with the Council; (4) Land in the County; (5) Licences in the County; (6) Corporate Tenancies 
with the Council; or (7) Securities -  interests in Companies trading with the Council.  
  
The following are other Registerable Personal Interests: 
  
(1) any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management) to 
which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; (2) any body which  (i) exercises 
functions of a public nature or (ii) has charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal 
purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade 
union) of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management ); or (3) 
any person from whom you have received within the previous three years a gift or hospitality 
with an estimated value of more than £50 which is attributable to your position as an elected or 
co-opted member of the Council. 
  
2. Non-registerable personal interests - You may have a non-registerable personal interest 
when you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or sub-
committees, and you are, or ought reasonably to be, aware that a decision in relation to an 
item of business which is to be transacted might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well 
being or financial position, or the well being or financial position of a person described below to 
a greater extent than most inhabitants of the area affected by the decision. 

The persons referred to above are: (a) a member of your family; (b) any person with whom you 
have a close association; or (c) in relation to persons described in (a) and (b), their employer, 
any firm in which they are a partner, or company of which they are a director or shareholder. 

3. Non-participation in Council Business 

When you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or sub-
committees, and you are aware that the criteria set out below  are satisfied in relation to any 
matter to be considered, or being considered at that meeting, you must : (a) Declare that fact 
to the meeting; (b) Not participate (or further participate) in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; (c) Not participate in any vote (or further vote) taken on the matter at the meeting; 
and (d) Leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed. 

The criteria for the purposes of the above paragraph are that: (a) You have a registerable or 
non-registerable personal interest in the matter which is such that a member of the public 
knowing the relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
your judgement of the public interest; and either (b) the matter will affect the financial position 
of yourself or one of the persons or bodies referred to above or in any of your register entries; 
or (c) the matter concerns a request for any permission, licence, consent or registration sought 
by yourself or any of the persons referred to above or in any of your register entries. 

This guidance is not a complete statement of the rules on declaration of interests which 
are contained in the Members’ Code of Conduct.  If in any doubt, please consult the 
Monitoring Officer or relevant Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

PROCEDURE AT VIRTUAL PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

 

               A  Welcome from Chairman to members and those watching on the livestream  

Welcome to also include reference to  

(i) Fact that meeting is being held on a virtual basis  

(ii) Members are asked to keep microphones on mute unless speaking  and 

otherwise respect the etiquette of a remote meeting including raising a hand 

when they wish to speak   

(iii) The changes to the public speaking protocol to include written 

representations being read out by an officer (but to retain speaking by local 

member where applicable) 

B  Record remote attendance of members  

(i)  Legal officer asks each member in alphabetical order to indicate presence at                         

meeting  

(ii)  Democratic Services Officer (DSO) to announce and record any apologies 

received  

 C Minutes of previous meeting and Disclosure of Members’ Interests 

 D Development Control  

APPLICATION 

Chair 

Introduces application 

Site Visit Video (previously circulated) - invite members’ questions 

Planning Officer 

Updates – Changes to recommendations – present report 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Public written representations and speaking (local member) 

Objector(s) (up to 750 words) – to be read by Officer 

Local member (up to 5 mins)/ parish councillor (up to 750 words)- to be read by Officer 

Applicant/Supporter (up to 750 words) – to be read by Officer 

NO QUESTIONS IN RELATION TO WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS OR OF/BY LOCAL COUNCILLOR 

Committee members’ questions to Planning Officers 

Chairman to respond to raised hands of members as to whether they have any questions 

of the Planning Officers  

Debate (Rules) 

Proposal 

Seconded 

DEBATE 

Again Chairman to respond to raised hand of members as to whether they wish to 

participate in the debate  

● No speeches until proposal seconded  

● Speech may not exceed 6 minutes  

● Amendments to Motions  

● Approve/Refuse/Defer  

 

Vote(by majority or Chair’s casting vote) 

 

(i) Planning Officer confirms and reads out wording of resolution 

(ii) Legal officer should then proceed to ask each member in turn to indicate which way 

they wish to vote – FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN (reminding members that they should 

abstain where they have not heard all of the consideration of the application)  

              

  

Page 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 

  

 
 NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
At a meeting of the Strategic Planning Committee held virtually  

on Tuesday 2 February 2021 at 4.00 pm 
 

PRESENT 
 

 Councillor CW Horncastle 
(Chair in the Chair)  

 
MEMBERS 

 
Armstrong E 
Bowman L 
Dodd R 
Flux B 
Foster J 
Gibson R 
Gobin J  
Hepple A 
 

 
Lang J 
Reid J  
Renner-Thompson G 
Robinson M  
Stewart G 
Swithenbank ICF 
Thorne T 

 
 

OFFICERS  
 

Dixon L 
Little L 
Horsman G 
Marron H 
Masson N 
Murfin R 
Sinnamon E 
Soulsby R 
Williams M 

Democratic Services Assistant 
Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Principal Planning Officer 
Principal Senior Planning Officer 
Legal Services Manager 
Director of Planning  
Development Service Manager 
Planning Officer 
Team Leader - ICT Practitioner SIFA 

 
 
130. PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT A VIRTUAL STRATEGIC PLANNING 

COMMITTEE 
 

The Chair outlined the procedure which would be followed at the virtual meeting and of 
the changes to the public speaking protocol.  He also advised Members that if their 
connection was lost during consideration of an application and it was not possible for a  
short recap to be provided then the Member would not be allowed to vote on the 
application.  
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ch.’s Initials……… 
Strategic Planning Committee – 2 February 2021   2 

140. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on Tuesday 1 
December 2020, as circulated, be agreed as true record and signed by the Chair.  

 
141. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillors Reid, Renner-Thompson, Robinson and Swithenbank all declared a 
personal and prejudicial interest in applications 20/03621/FUL and 20/3353/FUL as 
they were on the Board of Advance who were the sponsors of these applications and 
would withdraw from the meeting during their consideration. 
 
The Chair advised that in order to ensure the smooth running of the meeting and to 
allow those Members to leave, the agenda would be reordered and application 
20/02482/FUL would be heard first. 

 
142. DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
 The report requested the Committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
the report using the powers delegated to it.  Members were reminded of the principles 
which should govern their consideration of the applications, the procedure for handling 
representations, the requirement of conditions and the need for justifiable reasons for 
the granting of permission or refusal of planning applications.  
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 

 
143. 20/02482/FUL 

Construction of 29no. residential units associated with phase 3 of the site.  
Land North of Fairfields, Longframlington, Northumberland. 
 
There were no questions regarding the site visit videos. 
 
H Marron, Principal Planning Officer introduced the application to the Committee with 
the aid of a Power Point presentation.  An update was provided as follows: 
 

• Formal comments from the Building Conservation Officer had been received 
which confirmed that the development would give no harm to heritage assets 
which was in line with the Officer’s report.   

  
A written statement from the Parish Council in relation to the application was read out 
by L Little, Senior Democratic Services Officer and would be filed with the signed 
minutes of the meeting.  A copy would also be uploaded to the Council’s website. 
 
A written statement from the applicant in support of the application was read out by L 
Little, Senior Democratic Services Officer and would be filed with the signed minutes 
of the meeting. A copy would also be uploaded to the Council’s website. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following information 
was provided:- 

Page 4



________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ch.’s Initials……… 
Strategic Planning Committee – 2 February 2021   3 

 

• If the Local Plan had been adopted then the application would have been 
recommended for refusal as this would impose the settlement boundary and the 
Plan would carry full weight and would sustain a refusal.  However the Local 
Plan was not adopted at the current time and would not sustain a refusal. It was 
clarified that it had previously been the position that the further along the 
process the formation of the Local Plan was then the more weight it would 
carry, however now until the Local Plan had been adopted no weight can be 
placed as there were unresolved issues within the Plan in respect of settlement 
boundaries. 

• The application would normally have been considered by the North 
Northumberland Local Area Council however due to the applicant pushing for a 
decision and the possibility of them invoking non-determination, then it had 
been decided it should be reported to the first available Planning Committee, 
which happened to be Strategic Planning. 

• The affordable housing on the site would be 3 bedroomed terraced properties 
with 3 shared ownership and 2 affordable rent.  The affordable housing team 
had looked at the proposals and had no objections to the type and tenure of the 
properties.   

• It was clarified that some towns and villages had settlement boundaries in 
existing local plans but Longframlington did not.  The new Local Plan when 
adopted would impose settlement boundaries on all small towns that did not 
currently have them. 

• A settlement boundary was not intended to prevent all development beyond the 
boundary as exception sites could be considered.  The developer was keen for 
this application to be decided before the boundaries were imposed through the 
adoption of the Local Plan.   

• It had been checked and verified that a letter drop to 72 neighbouring properties 
had been undertaken along with a site notice and press notice which had 
generated 8 responses, mostly from residents of Armstrong Grove. 

• It was not possible to defer the deciding of applications until the Local Plan had 
been adopted as the Government had made it clear that decisions must 
continue to be made during the pandemic.  It would not be possible to refuse 
this application due to prematurity. 

• The Local Planning Authority was duty bound to deal with each application on 
its own merits.  

 
Councillor Thorne proposed refusal of the application for the reason of Cumulative 
Landscape Impact.  He advised that he also thought this was a premature decision 
and highlighted how much the village had grown, evolved and absorbed the drip feed 
of new housing within the village.  He stated that within the previous two years there 
had been an explosion of housing approvals and a village which had 400 properties 
was now heading towards another 300 newly built or approved which took the village 
to 700.  The North Northumberland Local Area Council had refused recent 
applications which had both been overturned at Appeal.  He advised residents had not 
objected to this application as they had done to previous applications for this reason. If 
the Local Plan had been adopted then the application would have been recommended 

Page 5



________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ch.’s Initials……… 
Strategic Planning Committee – 2 February 2021   4 

for refusal. The proposal to refuse the application for the reason of “cumulative 
landscape impact” was seconded by Councillor Renner-Thompson. 
 
In debating the application and the proposal to refuse the application whilst Members 
had sympathy the local Ward Member and residents, the majority advised that they 
could not support the proposal to refuse the application for the additional 29 properties 
as there were insufficient grounds to do so and the risk of losing an appeal to great.  A 
vote was taken as follows on the motion to refuse the application:- FOR 2; AGAINST 
13; ABSTENTION 1 and therefore the motion fell. 
 
Councillor Flux proposed approval of the application in line with the Officer’s 
recommendation as outlined in the report which was seconded by Councillor Stewart.  
A vote was taken as follows: FOR 13; AGAINST 2; ABSTENSIONS 1. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and with the conditions 
as outlined in the report and subject to a Legal Agreement pursuant  to s106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure the following 
obligations: 

• Financial contribution towards secondary education provision (£48,000) 

• Financial contribution towards healthcare provision (£22,200) 

• The provision of 5no. on site Affordable Homes. 
 

A five minute break was held at this point and Councillors Reid, Renner-Thompson, 
Robinson and Swithenbank left the meeting. 

 
143.  20/03621/FUL 

Enabling works, comprising of the laying out of a development platform at Plot 6 
Ashwood Business Park, including earthworks, tree removal, tree and 
landscaping management on A189 frontage, new access from internal 
roundabout and electrical substation. 
Ashwood Business Park, Ashwood Drive, Ashwood Business Park, Ashington, 
Northumberland. NE63 0XF 
 
There were no questions regarding the site visit videos. 
 
G Horsman, Principal Planning Officer introduced the application to the Committee 
with the aid of a Power Point presentation.  The Director of Planning advised that it 
was usual for the layout of industrial estates to initially include landscaping to increase 
the attractiveness to businesses, then as they developed, for some changes to be 
made.  As there was now a lot of interest in the business park some additional signage 
etc would be required and this was a natural process in the development of any 
business park or industrial estate to provide good quality marketable sites to attract 
inward investment and create jobs. 
 
Councillor Lang, whilst welcoming the employment opportunities within his Ward 
questioned if any improvements were to be made to the North Seaton roundabout as 
this development would put more pressure on an already dangerous roundabout.  
Members were advised that S106 funding would be made available for further 

Page 6



________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ch.’s Initials……… 
Strategic Planning Committee – 2 February 2021   5 

enhancements to the roundabout as and when needed but this would be on a phased 
basis when required.   
 
Councillor Stewart moved acceptance of the Officer’s recommendation to approve the 
application as outlined in the report which was seconded by Councillor Flux.  Members 
welcomed the prospect of additional employment in the area and following a vote it 
was unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and with the conditions 
as outlined in the report.  
 

144. 20/03353/FUL 
Erection of unit or general industrial uses (Class B2) (5,626 square metres 
(Gross External Area), with parking, landscaping and two site accesses onto 
Birchwood Way, as well as associated infrastructure and earth works 
Land North of Birchwood Way Roundabout, Birchwood Way, Ashwood Business 
Park, Ashington, Northumberland 
 
There were no questions regarding the site visit videos.  
 
R Soulsby, Planning Officer introduce the application to the Committee with the aid of 
a Power Point presentation.  Updates were provided as follows:- 
 

• Condition 17 within the officer report. Additional information had been submitted 
to Highways allowing removal of the pre commencement element of the 
condition. The condition should now read:- 
 
“No works to the site accesses from Birchwood Way or the pedestrian/cyclist 
access to Ashwood Drive shall commence until details of the proposed 
highways works to facilitate the main access junction and servicing yard access 
junction from Birchwood Way and the pedestrian/cyclist connection to Ashwood 
Drive along with all associated works have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be brought 
into use until the highways works have been constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans “  
 

• If the application were to be approved by members, the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) would also request that an alteration to condition 4 be dealt with 
under delegated powers following the committee. The applicant has submitted 
additional information to Public Protection to overcome this condition. The LPA 
were awaiting a formal response from Public Protection regarding this.' 

 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following information 
was provided:- 
 

• The cladding to be provided on the building would be part of the building 
regulation process and would be addressed then.  It did not form part of the 
planning application. 

Page 7



________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ch.’s Initials……… 
Strategic Planning Committee – 2 February 2021   6 

• The overall height of the proposed building would be 9.8m and due to the land 
slope would for the most part be screened from the housing with a slight view of 
the ridge possible. 

 
Councillor Flux proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve the 
application as outlined in the report and condition 17 as amended above and 
delegated authority be provided to the Director of Planning in respect of the wording of 
Condition 4, which was seconded by Councillor Hepple.  A vote was taken and it was 
unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and with the conditions 
as outlined in the report and amended above. 

 
145. APPEAL UPDATE REPORT 
 

Information was provided on the progress of planning appeal and related to appeals 
throughout all five Local Area Council Planning Committee areas and the Strategic 
Planning Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 

 
  

  
 
 
 
 
 CHAIR________________________  

 
  DATE _______________________ 

Page 8



  

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE (VIRTUAL) 

DATE: 2  MARCH 2021 

 

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

Report of the Director of Planning 

Cabinet Member: Councillor JR Riddle 

 

Purpose of report 

To request the Strategic Planning Committee to decide the planning applications attached 
to this report using the powers delegated to it. 
 

Recommendations 

The Strategic Planning Committee is recommended to consider the attached planning 
applications and decide them in accordance with the individual recommendations, also 
taking into account the advice contained in the covering report. 

 
Key issues 

Each application has its own particular set of individual issues and considerations that 
must be taken into account when determining the application.  These are set out in the 
individual reports contained in the next section of this agenda. 
 
 
Author and Contact Details 

 
Report author: Rob Murfin 
Director of Planning 
 01670 622542 
 Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk   

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

  
Introduction 

 
1. The following section of the agenda consists of planning applications to be 
determined by the Strategic Planning Committee in accordance with the current 
delegation arrangements. Any further information, observations or letters relating to 
any of the applications contained in this agenda and received after the date of 
publication of this report will be reported at the meeting. 
 
The Determination of Planning and Other Applications 

 
2. In considering the planning and other applications, members are advised to take 
into account the following general principles: 

 
● Decision makers are to have regard to the development plan, so far as it is 

material to the application 
 

● Applications are to be determined in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise 

 
● Applications should always be determined on their planning merits in the light of 

all material considerations 
 

● Members are reminded that recommendations in favour of giving permission must 
be accompanied by suitable conditions and a justification for giving permission, 
and that refusals of permission must be supported by clear planning reasons both 
of which are defensible on appeal 

 
● Where the Strategic Planning Committee is minded to determine an application 

other than in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation, clear reasons should 
be given that can be minuted, and appropriate conditions or refusal reasons put 
forward 

 
3. Planning conditions must meet the tests that are set down in paragraph 56 of the 
NPPF and meet the tests set out in Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
Conditions must be: 
   

a.  necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b. directly related to the development; and 
c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

 
4. Where councillors are contemplating moving a decision contrary to officer advice, 

they are recommended to consider seeking advice from senior officers as to what 
constitute material planning considerations, and as to what might be appropriate 
conditions or reasons for refusal. 

  

Page 10



Important Copyright Notice 
 
5. The maps used are reproduced from the Ordnance Survey maps with the permission 

of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery office, Crown Copyright reserved.   
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
These are listed at the end of the individual application reports. 

Implications 

Policy Procedures and individual recommendations are in line with 
policy unless otherwise stated 

Finance and 
value for 
money 

None unless stated 

Legal None unless stated  

Procurement None 

Human 
Resources 

None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact 

Assessment 

attached) 

Yes ☐  No ☐   

N/A       ☐ 

Planning applications are considered having regard to the 
Equality Act 2010 

Risk 
Assessment 

None 

Crime & 
Disorder 

As set out in the individual reports 

Customer 
Consideratio
n 

None 

Carbon 
reduction 

Each application will have an impact on the local environment 
and it has been assessed accordingly 

Wards All 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

 
 

 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, 2nd March 2021 

   
Application No: 20/03097/FUL 

Proposal: Proposed erection of Roadside Services comprising a Petrol Filling 
Station and Ancillary Retail Unit, Drive-Thru Coffee Shop and 
Associated Landscaping and Works. 

Site Address Land North Of Bernicia Headquarters, Ashwood Drive, Ashwood 
Business Park, Ashington, Northumberland 

Applicant: Euro Garages Group 
Euro House, Haslingden 
Road, Blackburn, BB1 2EE 

Agent: Ms Rachel Gee 
5 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, 
EH1 2DP  

Ward Seaton With Newbiggin 
West 

Parish Ashington 

Valid Date: 21 October 2020 Expiry 
Date: 

3 March 2021 

Case Officer 
Details: 

Name:  Mr Ryan Soulsby 

Job Title:  Planning Officer 

Tel No:  01670 622627 

Email: Ryan.Soulsby@northumberland.gov.uk 

 
Recommendation: That this application be GRANTED permission 
 

 
 

This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown 
Copyright (Not to Scale) 

 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

1. Introduction  
 
1.1.  This application is being referred to Strategic Planning Committee in 

accordance with the County Council's scheme of delegation as the applicant 
is Advance Northumberland.  

 
 2. Description of the Proposals  
 
2.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a petrol filling station and 

ancillary retail unit, a drive thru coffee shop and associated landscaping and 
works on land North of Bernicia HQ, Ashwood Business Park, Ashington.  

 
2.2 The proposed site layout would see the creation of a new vehicular access off 

the Ashwood Drive roundabout extending into the site. The petrol filling station 
and ancillary retail unit would be located within the Northern section of the site 
whilst the coffee drive thru premises would be located towards the Southern 
boundary.  

 
2.3 The proposed petrol filling station (PFS) and retail unit would measure 34.8 

metres in length by 14.58 metres in width with an overall height of 5.25 
metres. There would be an overhang of approximately 2 metres to the 
building frontage created by the sloping roof. Materials used would consist of 
isoclad composite panelling, grey fascia, capping and glazing surrounds and 
cementitious boarding. 

 
2.4 The proposed drive thru coffee building would measure 21.88 metres in length 

by 15.8 metres in width with a roof height of 3.9 metres. A timber ‘tower’ 
addition upon the roof would protrude a further 3 metres. Materials would 
consist of eternity Equitone façade panelling, stone grey capping and 
flashings and timber panelling.  

  
2.4 The site is allocated as an area for general employment and forms part of a 

wider business park environment. The parcel of land at present is overgrown 
grassed land with a soft landscaping boundary to the North and East where 
existing tree planting is located. Planning application reference no. was 
granted consent by the LPA in February 2021 for various engineering works 
to the site.  

 
3. Planning History 
 

N/A 
 
4. Consultee Responses 
 

Highways England  No objection.  

Highways  No objection subject to recommended conditions. 

Public Protection  No objection subject to recommended conditions.  

County Ecologist  No objection subject to recommended conditions. 

Ashington Parish 
Council  

No response received.    

Northumbrian Water 
Ltd  

No comment.  

Natural England  No objection.  

Page 14



 

Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA)  

No objection subject to recommended conditions 

 
 

5. Public Responses 
Neighbour Notification 
 

Number of Neighbours Notified 20 

Number of Objections 0 

Number of Support 0 

Number of General Comments 0 

 
Notices 
 
General site notice, 30th October 2020  
No Press Notice Required.  
   
Summary of Responses: 
 
None received 
 
The above is a summary of the comments. The full written text is available on our 
website at: http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-
applications//applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QH0KIZQSIXA00   
 
6. Planning Policy 
 
6.1 Development Plan Policy   
 
Wansbeck District Local Plan (WDLP) (2007)  
 
Policy GP1 - Location of development   
Policy GP4 - Accessibility   
Policy GP5 - Landscape character   
Policy GP6 - Trees and hedgerows   
Policy GP13 - Biodiversity and wildlife networks   
Policy GP21 - Evaluation of archaeological sites   
Policy GP22 - Flood risk and erosion   
Policy GP24 - Pollution  
Policy GP29 - Land contamination   
Policy GP30 - Visual impact of development   
Policy GP32 - Standards of landscape treatment   
Policy EMP1 - General employment areas   
Policy EMP2 - Business parks   
Policy EMP8 – Retention of general employment sites 
Policy T3 - Provision for cyclists   
Policy T4 - Provision for walking   
Policy T5 - Access for people with reduced mobility   
Policy T6 - Traffic implications of new development   
Policy CF6 - Water supply and drainage   
Policy CF7 - Planning conditions and obligations   
 
6.2 National Planning Policy   

Page 15



 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)   
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (2020)   
National Design Guide   
 
6.3 Other Documents/Strategies   
 
Northumberland Local Plan Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) including 
proposed minor modifications (NLP)   
 
Policy STP 1 - Spatial strategy (Strategic Policy)   
Policy STP 2 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development (Strategic Policy)   
Policy STP 3 - Principles of sustainable development (Strategic Policy)   
Policy STP 4 - Climate change mitigation and adaptation (Strategic Policy)   
Policy STP 6 - Green Infrastructure (Strategic Policy)   
Policy ECN 1 - Planning strategy for the economy (Strategic Policy)   
Policy ECN 4 - Round 2 Enterprise Zones (Strategic Policy)   
Policy ECN 6 - General employment land allocations & safeguarding (Strategic 
Policy)   
Policy ECN 7 - Key general employment areas for B-class uses   
Policy ECN 9 - Additional flexibility in general employment areas   
Policy ECN 15 -Tourism and visitor development    
Policy QOP 1 - Design principles (Strategic Policy)   
Policy QOP 2 - Good design and amenity   
Policy QOP 4 - Landscaping and trees   
Policy QOP 6 - Delivering well-designed places   
Policy TRA 1 - Promoting sustainable connections (Strategic Policy)   
Policy TRA 2 - The effects of development on the transport network   
Policy ENV 1 - Approaches to assessing the impact of development on the natural, 
historic and built environment (Strategic Policy)   
Policy ENV 2 - Biodiversity and geodiversity   
Policy ENV 3 - Landscape   
Policy WAT 2 - Water supply and sewerage   
Policy WAT 3 - Flooding   
Policy WAT 4 - Sustainable Drainage Systems   
Policy POL 1 - Unstable and contaminated land 
 
7. Appraisal 
 
7.1  In assessing the acceptability of any proposal, regard must be given to 

policies contained within the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) is a material consideration and states that the starting point for 
determining applications remains with the development plan, which in this 
case contains policies from the Wansbeck District Local Plan (WDLP). The 
main considerations in the assessment of this application are:  

 

• Principle of development;   

• Design and visual character;  

• Residential amenity;   

• Highway safety;  

• Ecological impacts;  

• Public protection;  

Page 16



 

• Water management.   
 

In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF, local planning authorities 
(LPA's) may also give weight to relevant policies within emerging plans 
depending on the stage of preparation, extent of unresolved objections and 
the degree of consistency with the NPPF. Policies contained within the NLP 
(including proposed minor modifications May 2019) can therefore be given 
some weight in the assessment of this application.    

 
  Principle of development  
 
7.2 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 

determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is a material consideration. The 
development plan comprises the Wansbeck District Local Plan (2007). This 
document is the starting point for determining applications as set out in the 
NPPF. However, the NPPF advises that local planning authorities (LPAs) are 
only to afford existing Local Plans material weight insofar as they accord with 
the NPPF.  

 
7.3 In accordance with the NPPF weight may also be given to the policies in 

emerging plans, depending on the stage of preparation of the plan, the extent 
to which emerging policy aligns with the NPPF and the extent of unresolved 
objections to the emerging plan. The latest version of the NLP was submitted 
to the Secretary of State for examination in May 2019 and the examination in 
public into the Plan has recently concluded. Relevant policies in this 
document are a material consideration in determining this application and it is 
considered that such policies can be afforded some weight at this time.  

 
7.4 For the purposes of WDLP Policy GP1 the site lies within the defined 

settlement boundary of Ashington in a location where development generally 
is supported on greenfield sites if the site is allocated for development. In this 
regard the site forms part of a wider site allocated under Policy EMP1 as a 
site for employment development, with Policy EMP2 stating that the allocated 
site is to be developed as a business park. The employment status of the 
Ashwood Business Park site is carried over into the Council's emerging Local 
Plan and further strengthened with the business park site now having 
Enterprise Zone status which is supported by NLP Policy ECN 4.  

 
7.5 Such policy reflects NPPF paragraph 80 which states that planning policies 

and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can 
invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to 
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local 
business needs and wider opportunities for development. The approach taken 
should allow each area to build on its strengths, counter any weaknesses and 
address the challenges of the future.  

 
7.6 Whilst the proposals are not considered to fall under the use class categories 

B1, B2 and B8 (as per amended use class order 1st September 2020) which 
policy EMP 1 seeks to encourage within defined general employment areas, 
policy EMP 8 of the WDLP does allow development outside these use classes 
providing  

 

Page 17



 

a) the use would generate a significant amount of employment or would have 
similar physical characteristics to the specified uses; or 
b) the development would not significantly diminish the range of employment 
sites or premises available in the local area; or 
c) the development has significant community benefits which over ride the 
need to maintain the site or premises for possible future employment 
development and the use cannot satisfactorily be accommodated elsewhere; 
or 
d) the use is ancillary to a main employment use. 

 
7.7 In this instance, it can be considered that the proposed units would generate 
 a significant level of employment whilst also having similar physical   
 characteristics to the type of development expected within employment  
 areas. The proposals would not considerably impact upon employment land 
 available within the business park with a number of vacant plots remaining 
 for B1, B2 and B8 use classes.  
 
7.8 The proposal therefore represents an acceptable form of development in 

accordance with both local and national planning policy.   
 

Design and visual character  
 
7.9 The wider site of which the application site forms part of has been developed 

as a business park in accordance with WDLP Policy EMP2. That policy 
makes reference to the distinguishing feature which differentiates business 
park sites such as this from other employment sites as being a high quality 
environment and is this regard specific reference is made to significant 
amounts of planting and other forms of landscaping. WDLP Policy GP5 states 
that development must respect the character of the District's landscape. 
Proposals will be assessed in terms of the siting, scale and design of 
buildings and materials and the effect on distant views. Development which 
would have an adverse effect on the character or appearance of those areas 
which contribute most to the quality and distinctiveness of the local landscape 
will not be permitted.  

 
7.10 Policy GP30 further states that all proposed development will be assessed in 

terms of its visual impact. Developments which in visual terms would cause 
significant harm to the character and quality of the surrounding environment 
will be refused.  

 
7.11 Moving onto national planning policy, NPPF paragraph 170 further advises 

that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, recognising the 
intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. NLP Policy ENV3 reflects 
the above Local Plan and NPPF policy.  

 
7.12 In terms of the Wansbeck Design Guide, this document's Core Design Policy 

CD1 states that development proposals will be expected to contribute to the 
creation of high quality sustainable environments which enhance and 
complement the natural and built assets of Wansbeck. This will be achieved in 
a number of ways including through the protection and enhancement of rural 
open spaces. The Guide then offers advice in respect of a number of defined 
character areas. The application site lies within the 'Shed environment' 

Page 18



 

Character Area. In respect of this character area the Guide states that 
Ashwood Business Park does provide a higher quality environment. However, 
in general the former District's shed environments are not visually pleasing 
with the public realm not being sensitive to its location. Design guidance for 
these areas recommends enriching the environment with landscape, although 
no specific guidance is provided in relation to Ashwood Business Park itself.  

 
7.13 As part of the application submission, detailed plans and elevations have 

been submitted to the local authority for assessment. The proposed scale and 
massing of the PFS and drive thru coffee unit are appropriate and would not 
result in overdevelopment of the site. It is noted that significantly larger units 
already exist within the business park to the South of the application site and 
also to the West. The choice of materials is consistent with existing premises 
located within the Business Park and is regularly used in these types of 
development, therefore ensuring that the visual character of the area would 
not be adversely impacted upon.  

 
7.14 Existing soft landscaping is located upon the Northern and Eastern boundary 

of the application site and whilst some of this will have to be removed to 
facilitate the development, these works approved under application reference 
no. 20/03621/FUL, the majority of this shall be retained with additional soft 
landscaping also proposed within the curtilage of the application site. Due to 
the topography of the land and existing boundary treatments, the 2no units 
would not be readily visible outside the curtilage of the Business Park.  

 
7.15 The proposal therefore accords with relevant local and national planning 

policy and represents good design.   
 
  Residential amenity  
 
7.16 Paragraph 127, part f) seeks for developments to ensure that there would be 

no adverse impact upon amenity when it states proposals should 'create 
places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users'.  

 
7.17 Whilst the application site is located within a designated business park area, it 

is noted that existing residential properties are located to the North of the site, 
albeit separated by the existing B1334 public highway and the existing 
boundary treatments as referenced earlier in the appraisal. A separation 
distance of approximately 180 metres would exist between the rear elevation 
of these residential properties and the North facing elevation of the proposed 
PFS unit.    

 
7.18 Consultation was undertaken with the local authority's Public Protection team 

with a noise impact assessment provided by the applicant. This report 
concludes that based upon a worst-case scenario, the resulting noise levels 
are deemed to be low impact and that because the area is dominated by road 
traffic noise, any noise would be indistinguishable from that.  

 
7.19 The proposal therefore accords with relevant local and national planning 

policy in relation to residential amenity.   
 
  Highway safety   

Page 19



 

 
7.20 Policy GP4 of the Wansbeck District Local Plan states that new development 

should be located to reduce the need to travel and to minimise journey length. 
It should be accessible to all users by a choice of means of transport including 
buses, walking and cycling. Policy T3 states that improved facilities for cycling 
in the District will be sought. Cyclists will be provided for as part of highway 
and traffic management schemes and by developers as part of new 
developments. Provision will include the development of safe and convenient 
routes and cycle parking facilities. Developers will be required as a condition 
of planning permission to provide cycle parking as part of their developments.  

 
7.21 Policy T6 states that when planning applications are determined, the volume 

and character of traffic likely to be generated by and attracted to the proposed 
development will be considered. Proposals will only be permitted if: a) the 
existing highway network is adequate to cope with any additional traffic 
resulting from the development or necessary improvement works will be 
carried out before the development goes ahead; b) the proposed 
arrangements for access and egress will allow the safe and efficient 
movement of vehicles; c) internal circulation arrangements will be able to 
absorb vehicular traffic entering the site without queues forming on existing 
roads and will include measures to achieve safe traffic speeds; and d) 
adequate provision is made, in terms of safety and operating efficiency, for 
servicing and deliveries and for other heavy vehicles such as buses and 
emergency vehicles. A Transport Assessment, including a travel plan and an 
assessment of accessibility where appropriate, will be required to be 
submitted with proposals for development that will have significant transport 
implications.   

 
7.22 Policy T5 advises that an environment which is accessible to all will be 

sought. Developers will be required to make appropriate provision for those 
with reduced mobility as part of their developments.   

 
7.23 Policies TRA1 and 2 of the emerging Local Plan reflect the above WDLP 

Policies.    
 
7.24 Consultation was undertaken with Highways Development Management who, 

following the submission of additional information, raised no objection to the 
proposals subject to recommended conditions. The creation of a new access 
to the site off the Ashwood Business Park roundabout would require the 
applicant to enter into a S278 agreement with the highways authority, out with 
the planning process, for the proposed works.  

 
7.25 To ensure highway safety throughout the development phase, a condition is 

recommended for a construction method statement to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA prior to the commencement of development. 
Subject to recommended conditions, the proposal accords with relevant local 
and national planning policy in regards to highway safety.   

 
Ecological impacts   

 
7.26 WDLP Policy GP13 states that the value to biodiversity of all sites proposed 

for development will be considered when planning applications are 
determined whether or not they are designated sites. Particular importance 

Page 20



 

will be attached to the protection of priority habitats and species in Wansbeck. 
Where proposals affect a habitat which contributes, or could potentially 
contribute, to a network of natural habitats the developer will be required to 
protect and enhance the network.    

 
7.27 The NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance biodiversity and sets out that 

assessment of potential impacts from development should be undertaken. It 
states that the presumption in favour of sustainable development does not 
apply where development requiring Appropriate Assessment under the Birds 
or Habitats Directives is being considered, planned or determined. Emerging 
Local Plan Policies ENV1 and ENV2 reflect these objectives.  

 
7.28 Consultation was undertaken with the local authority's ecologist who, following 

the submission of additional information, raised no objection to the proposals. 
The site is dominated by semi-improved natural grassland, with an area of 
damper grassland to the central south area, and scattered scrub to the 
boundaries. The grassland is not considered to be a priority habitat but has 
moderate species diversity and could under the correct management become 
more species rich. No evidence of notable or protected species were recorded 
on site however it will provide a resource for pollinators, birds and small 
mammals. 

 
7.29 In the context of the wider grassland habitat on the Business Park, there is 

some potential for ground nesting birds such as Skylark, although informal 
use by dog walkers (as noted in the ecology report) would reduce its 
suitability. Never-the-less precautions should be taken during construction. A 
condition is also recommended to secure the installation of 2no integrated 
features to provide nesting habitat for birds within the fabric of the new 
buildings. This would demonstrate biodiversity net gains in accordance with 
the provisions of the NPPF.  

 
Public Protection  

 
7.30 Policy GP22a of the Wansbeck District Local Plan states that development on 

unstable land will not be permitted unless satisfactory measures to stabilise 
the site are carried out and done so at the expense of the developer. If risk 
from unstable ground conditions is suspected, developers will be required to 
submit a stability report with their planning applications to demonstrate that 
the site is stable or can be made so and that the development will not affect 
land stability beyond the site.  

 
7.31 Policy GP29 advises that where there is reason to suspect that land is 

affected by contamination, applicants for planning permission will be required 
to submit a report of a desk study of previous uses of the site and their 
potential for contamination. Unless the study clearly demonstrates that the 
risk to the proposed uses from contamination is acceptable, furthermore 
detailed investigations will be required before the application is determined to 
assess the risks and identify and appraise the options for remediation. 
Development will only be permitted if sustainable and feasible remediation 
solutions are adopted to secure the removal of unacceptable risk and make 
the site suitable for its new use. Contaminated materials should be 
decontaminated and re-used on site if this can be achieved economically and 

Page 21



 

without unacceptable adverse impacts upon the environment or the health 
and safety of the community.  

 
7.32 Consultation was undertaken with the local authority's Public Protection team 

who raised no objection to the proposals, subject to recommended conditions. 
As the site is located within a coal risk advice area, conditions relating to 
ground gas protection are required to ensure a level of protection to end users 
of the building. Furthermore, a condition is required to deal with odour 
treatment at the site where details of any kitchen extraction system within the 
units must be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to installation.  

 
Water management  

 
7.33 Policy GP22 of the Wansbeck District Local Plan states that developers are 

required to consider the risk to their development from flooding and to 
consider any possible effect of their development on flood risk elsewhere. 
Development in areas of flood risk will not be permitted unless a flood risk 
assessment has been carried out and it can be demonstrated that: a) there is 
no reasonable alternative development option available which would involve 
no risk or a lower risk of flooding; b) the development does not increase the 
risk of flooding elsewhere; and c) satisfactory protection measures can be 
carried out at the expense of the developer and maintained for the lifetime of 
the development.  

 
7.34 Policy CF6 continues by stating that when considering all development 

proposals, the authority will take into account the availability of water supply, 
surface water drainage and sewage disposal facilities. Development will only 
be permitted if adequate services can be provided prior to occupation and 
without harm to the environment and existing uses. Sustainable drainage 
systems to control and manage surface water run-off should be incorporated 
into new development schemes. Proposals for the long term maintenance and 
management of such systems should be established at the planning 
application stage.  

 
7.35 The NPPF advises that development should be directed towards areas at 

lowest risk from flooding and that Local Planning Authorities should ensure 
that development does not increase flood risk elsewhere. The site lies within 
Flood Zone 1 and in order to address flood risk given the size of the site, the 
applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA).  

 
7.36 Policies WAT3 and WAT4 of the emerging Local Plan likewise seek to ensure 

that developments are acceptable on drainage and flood risk grounds and 
incorporate sustainable drainage infrastructure where possible.  

 
7.37 The application site lies wholly within Flood Zone 1 and therefore risk of 

flooding on the site is not considered to be high. There is already an existing 
surface water drainage system for the business park and the site as re-
profiled would continue to connect into that system.  

 
7.38 Consultation was undertaken with the Lead Local Flood Authority team who, 

following the submission of additional information, raised no objection to the 
proposals subject to recommended conditions. These conditions would deal 

Page 22



 

with how surface water shall be disposed of from the site during the 
construction phase whilst a verification report would demonstrate that 
sustainable drainage systems have been installed as per approved.  

 
7.39 Overall, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in relation to drainage, 

flood risk and foul sewage subject to conditions and would be in accordance 
with the Wansbeck District Local Plan, the emerging Local Plan and the NPPF 

 
Equality Duty 

  
7.40 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal 

on those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act. Officers 
have had due regard to Sec 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Equality Act 2010 and 
considered the information provided by the applicant, together with the 
responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the 
proposal would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups 
with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 
required to make it acceptable in this regard. 

  
Crime and Disorder Act Implications 

 
7.41 These proposals have no implications in relation to crime and disorder. 
  

Human Rights Act Implications 
 
7.42 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 

rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and 
prevents the Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those 
rights. Article 8 of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an 
individual's private life and home save for that interference which is in 
accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society in the 
interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic wellbeing of the 
country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual's peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in 
the public interest. 

 
7.43 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 

means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be 
realised. The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is 
any identifiable interference with these rights. The Planning Considerations 
identified are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is 
proportionate. Case law has been decided which indicates that certain 
development does interfere with an individual's rights under Human Rights 
legislation. This application has been considered in the light of statute and 
case law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate. 

 
7.44 Officers are also aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the purpose of this 

decision) is the determination of an individual's civil rights and obligations. 
Article 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an individual is 
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal. Article 6 has been subject to a great deal 
of case law. It has been decided that for planning matters the decision making 

Page 23



 

process as a whole, which includes the right of review by the High Court, 
complied with Article 6. 

 
8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 The proposal represents an acceptable form of development in accordance 

with both local and national planning policy. The application is recommended 
for approval subject to recommended conditions as set out below. 

 
9. Recommendation 
 

That this application be GRANTED permission subject to the following: 
 

Conditions/Reason 
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended) 

 
02. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 

complete accordance with the approved plans.  The approved plans for this 
development are:-  

 
1) Location plan drawing no. 190630-PLNG-09 (received 21st October 2020) 
2) Proposed drive thru elevations drawing no. 190630 - PLNG6(A) (received 

26th January 2021) 
3) Proposed site layout drawing no. 190630 - PLNG - 03(F) (received 26th 

January 2021) 
4) Proposed tracking plan drawing no. 190630 - PLNG - 07(D) (received 26th 

January 2021) 
5) Landscape layout drawing no. 01 Rev. B (received 23rd November 2020) 
6) Mechanical Ventilation & Environmental Control Equipment report 

(received 23rd November 2020) 
7) Cycle shelter details (received 18th November 2020) 
8) Delivery management plan (received 18th November 2020) 
9) Proposed PFS elevations drawing no. 190630 - PLNG5 (received 30th 

September 2020) 
10) Proposed ancillary details drawing no. 190630 - PLNG8 (received 30th 

September 2020) 
11) Lighting report Kingfisher lighting (received 30th September 2020) 
12) Drainage impact assessment FRDS (received 26th January 2021) 
13) Proposed site elevations drawing no. 190630 – PLNG4 (received 30th 

September 2020) 
 

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans. 

 
03. No buildings shall be constructed until a report detailing the protective 

measures to prevent the ingress of ground gases, including depleted Oxygen 
(<19%), to the CS2 standard specified in BS8485:2015+A1:2019 (Code of 
Practice for the design of protective measures for Methane and Carbon 

Page 24



 

Dioxide ground gases for new buildings), have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 
The report shall contain full details of the validation and verification 
assessment to be undertaken on the installed ground gas protection, as 
detailed in CIRIA C735 (Good practice on the testing and verification of 
protection systems for buildings against hazardous ground gases).  

 
Reason: In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may 
potentially be prejudicial to the amenity of the occupants of the respective 
properties. 

 
04. The development shall not be brought into use until the applicant has 

submitted a validation and verification report to the approved methodology in 
Condition 3, which has been approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 
Reason: In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may 
potentially be prejudicial to the amenity of the occupants of the respective 
properties. 

 
05. If during re-development contamination not previously considered is identified, 

then an additional written Method Statement regarding this material shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
building shall be occupied until a method statement has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and measures 
proposed to deal with the contamination have been carried out. Should no 
contamination be found during development then the applicant shall submit a 
signed statement indicating this to discharge this condition.  

 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of 
the land and dwellings are minimised and to ensure that the development can 
be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to any future occupants 

 
06. Prior to the installation of the kitchen extraction system, the system being 

brought into use or continue in use, the applicant shall provide full details of 
the odour treatment system to be installed into the development which shall 
provide a Very High/High/Medium level of odour control, as defined in the 
EMAQ document “Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen 
Exhaust Systems”. The details shall be submitted to the LPA for its written 
approval with the approved scheme implemented in full.  

 
Reason: To protect residential amenity and provide a commensurate level of 
protection against odour. 

 
07. The development shall not be occupied until the car parking areas indicated 

on the approved plans, including any disabled car parking spaces contained 
therein, has been implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
Thereafter, the car parking areas shall be retained in accordance with the 
approved plans and shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking 
of vehicles associated with the development.  

 

Page 25



 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
08. Development shall not commence until details of the proposed highway works 

(new vehicular access/egress from the internal roundabout within Ashwood 
Business Park - from a fourth arm of the existing roundabout, with footway 
and cycleway connections to the existing footway/cycleway network within the 
business park, and any associated drainage, street lighting, signage, and line 
markings) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The building(s) shall not be occupied until the highway 
works have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
09. The development shall not be occupied until cycle parking shown on the 

approved plans has been implemented. Thereafter, the cycle parking shall be 
retained in accordance with the approved plans and shall be kept available for 
the parking of cycles at all times.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, residential amenity and 
sustainable development, in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
10. Prior to occupation, details of surface water drainage to manage run off from 

private land have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved surface water drainage scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development 
is occupied and thereafter maintained in accordance with the approved 
details.  

 
Reason: In order to prevent surface water run-off in the interests of the 
amenity of the area and to ensure suitable drainage has been investigated for 
the development and implemented, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 

11. Twelve months after first occupation of the development details of a Full 
Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. At all times thereafter the approved Full Travel Plan shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details. This Full Travel 
Plan must include: i details of and results from an initial staff travel to work 
survey. ii clearly specified ongoing targets for staff travel mode shares. iii a 
plan for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Full Travel Plan; 
and iv a scheme providing for a biennial monitoring report to be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority regarding the implementation of the Full Travel 
Plan.  
 
Reason: In the interests of Sustainable Development, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
12. Prior to occupation details of Electric Vehicle Charging shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved electric 
vehicle charging points shall be implemented before the development is 

Page 26



 

occupied. Thereafter, the electric vehicle charging points shall be retained in 
accordance with the approved details and shall be kept available for the 
parking of electric vehicles at all times.  

 
Reason: In the interests of Sustainable Development, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
13. Development shall not commence until a Construction Method Statement, 

together with supporting plan has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved Construction Method 
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The 
Construction Method Statement] and plan shall, where applicable, provide for:  

 
i. details of temporary traffic management measures, temporary access, 
routes and vehicles.  
ii. vehicle cleaning facilities.  
iii. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.  
iv. the loading and unloading of plant and materials.  
v. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development  

 
Reason: To prevent nuisance in the interests of residential amenity and 
highway safety, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
14. No external refuse or refuse container shall be stored outside of the approved 

refuse storage area except on the day of refuse collection.  
 

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the surrounding area and highway 
safety, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
15. No ground clearance or other vegetation removal shall be undertaken 

between 1st March and 31st August unless a suitably qualified ecologist has 
first confirmed that no bird’s nests that are being built or are in use, eggs or 
dependent young will be damaged or destroyed. 

 
Reason: To protect nesting birds, all species of which are protected by law. 

 
16. All works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the guidance set out 

in BS5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction: 
Recommendations British Standards Institution, 2012. 

 
Reason: To maintain and protect the existing landscape and biodiversity value 
of the site. 

 
17. Prior to first occupation or use of the development hereby approved two 

integrated features providing nesting habitat for birds must be constructed 
within the fabric of the new buildings; one on the north aspect of the petrol 
filling station and one on the eastern aspect of the coffee drive through 
building.  

 
Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest 
of the area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 175 d) of the NPPF 
(2019) to encourage the incorporation of biodiversity improvements in and 

Page 27



 

around developments, especially where this can secure measurable net gains 
for biodiversity. 

 
18. Prior to the first use of the development, a verification report carried out by a 

qualified drainage engineer or a suitably qualified professional must be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, to demonstrate 
that all sustainable drainage systems have been constructed as per the 
agreed scheme. This verification report shall include:  

 
* As built drawings for all SuDS components - including dimensions (base 
levels, inlet/outlet elevations, areas, depths, lengths, diameters, gradients 
etc);  
* Construction details (component drawings, materials, vegetation);  
* Health and Safety file; and * Details of ownership organisation/adoption 
details.  

 
Reason: To ensure that all sustainable drainage systems are designed to the 
DEFRA non-technical standards. 

 
19. Details of the disposal of surface water from the development through the 

construction phase shall be submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 
Reason: To ensure the risk of flooding does not increase during this phase 
and to limit the siltation of any on site surface water features. 

 
 Informatives 
 

1) It is likely that the activity will require an environmental permit under The 
Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 (as 
amended), the prescribed process for the “unloading petrol into storage at 
petrol stations” is cover the delivery of petrol by tankers to the station (Stage I) 
and dispensing of petrol into vehicles (Stage II). The applicant should 
appraise themselves of any regulatory requirements under The Environmental 
Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 (as amended) and whether 
they require an environmental permit for these operations.  

 
It is recommended that an application for a permit is made as soon as 
possible to the Environmental Protection Team at Northumberland County 
Council as the process can take up to three months: 
https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Protection/Pollution/Pollution.aspx#polluti
oncontrol -environmentalpermitting 

 
2) Our adopted guidance provides a guide to what should be included in a gas 

protection proposal and is included in Appendix 2 of the YALPAG Technical 
Guidance - Verification Requirements for Gas Protection Systems, Version 
1.1 Dec 2016, which can be accessed in the “related documents for 
environmental protection in development“ section at:  
 
https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Protection/Pollution/Advice.aspx 

 
Verification of the gas protection should be proposed to address the first gas 
condition, once the buildings are erected to floor level then the second gas 

Page 28

https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Protection/Pollution/Advice.aspx


 

protection condition can be discharged and the verification should match what 
is proposed but should broadly consist of the items listed in Appendix 3 of the 
above guidance document. This may be achieved through  

 
● A recognised gas membrane fitted as a gas membrane - taped or welded, 
top-hats on services taped or welded to the membrane, fabricated internal 
corners taped or welded to the membrane following CIRIA C735 and BS 
8485:2015+A1:2019.  
● A Reinforced concrete ground bearing foundation raft with limited service 
penetrations that are cast into slab.  

 
Assuming a gas regime (Characteristic Situation) of CS2 and Building Type B 
or C (Table 3 of BS8485:2015+A1:2019) the development will have to achieve 
a score of 3.5 or 2.5, respectively.  

 
Therefore, the applicant should propose gas protection measures meeting the 
requirements of CIRIA C735 and achieving the necessary 3.5 or 2.5 point in 
BS 8485:2015 for CS2. BS 8485 includes the following to assist in the choice 
of which building types the structures would fall under: 

 
Building Types (Table 4 of BS 8485) 

 
Building Type A = residential dwellings  

 
Building Type B = Type B building: private or commercial property with central 
building management control of any alterations to the building or its uses but 
limited or no central building management control of the maintenance of the 
building, including the gas protection measures. Multiple occupancy. Small to 
medium size rooms with passive ventilation of rooms and other internal 
spaces throughout ground floor and basement areas. May be conventional 
building or civil engineering construction. Examples include managed 
apartments, multiple occupancy offices, some retail premises and parts of 
some public buildings (such as schools, hospitals, leisure centres) and parts 
of hotels.  

 
Building Type C = commercial building with central building management 
control of any alterations to the building or its uses and central building 
management control of the maintenance of the building, including the gas 
protection measures. Single occupancy of ground floor and basement areas. 
Small to large size rooms with active ventilation or good passive ventilation of 
all rooms and other internal spaces throughout ground floor and basement 
areas. Examples include offices, some retail premises, and parts of some 
public buildings (such as schools, hospitals, leisure centres and parts of 
hotels).  

 
Building Type D = large volume industrial style buildings Building Type B 
requires meeting a score of 3.5 (CS2 and building type B) and Building Type 
C requires meeting a score of 2.5 (CS2 and building type B).  

 
Structural Barrier (Table 5 of BS 8485)  

 
A cast in-situ ground bearing floor slab would achieve a score of 0.5, whereas 
a well reinforced cast in situ monolithic reinforced ground bearing raft or 

Page 29



 

reinforced cast in-situ suspended floor slab with minimal penetrations would 
achieve a score of 1.5.  

 
Gas Membrane (Table 7 of BS 8485)  

 
A gas membrane can achieve a score of 2.0 if it meets the requirements of 
Table 7 of BS 8485, which are:  

 
a) sufficiently impervious, both in the sheet material and in the sealing of 
sheets and sealing around sheet penetrations, to prevent any significant 
passage of methane and/or carbon dioxide through the membrane;  

 
b) sufficiently durable to remain serviceable for the anticipated life of the 
building and duration of gas emissions;  

 
c) sufficiently strong to withstand the installation process and following trades 
until covered (e.g. penetration from steel fibres in fibre reinforced concrete, 
penetration of reinforcement ties, tearing due to working above it, dropping 
tools, etc); and to withstand in-service stresses (e.g. settlement if placed 
below a floor slab);  

 
d) capable, after installation, of providing a complete barrier to the entry of the 
relevant gas; and  

 
e) verified in accordance with CIRIA C735 [N1].  

 
f) Membrane must meet the gas transmission specification in BS 8485 for 
methane not to exceed 40ml/m2/day/atm. 

 
3) The applicant should ensure that as well as any top-hats being secured to the 

membrane (taped or welded) that the internal annulus of the duct holding 
each of the service pipes and conduits (water, gas, electric etc.) is filled with a 
gastight, closed cell sealant such as FILOseal+ or FILOseal+HD produced by 
Filoform UK Ltd: https://www.filoform.co.uk/catalog/category/view/s/re-
enterable-ductsealingsystems/id/9/ 

 
4) Any fixed, external lighting installed as part of this development should have 

regard for the ILP Guidance on the Reduction of Obtrusive Light, 2012: 
https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/obtrusive-light/ The applicant should 
ensure that lighting does not cause an annoyance to any nearby receptors. 
Experience of lighting installations has shown that complaints about 
floodlighting normally arise from poorly designed or installed lighting schemes. 
It is recommended that the applicant ensures the lighting contractor installs 
the proposed lighting scheme in line with submitted proposals and that the ILP 
guidance is adhered to minimise the impact of lighting as part of this 
development. 

 
5) Should the application be granted it is strongly recommended that the 

applicant contact the Commercial Team in the Public Health Protection Unit 
through the Information Centre 0345 600 6400, at an early stage to ensure 
compliance with food safety / health & safety legislation. 

 

Page 30

https://www.filoform.co.uk/catalog/category/view/s/re-enterable-ductsealingsystems/id/9/
https://www.filoform.co.uk/catalog/category/view/s/re-enterable-ductsealingsystems/id/9/


 

Please see our webpages for details of the requirements for toilet provision in 
catering premises within Northumberland:  

 
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Protection/Environmentalhealth/Businesse
s.aspx#toiletprovisioninfoodpremises  

 
6) Should any clarification be required on toilet provision, then please contact the 

Council and ask to speak to someone in the Commercial Team within the 
Public Health Protection Unit. 

 
7) The effectiveness of the development’s design in ensuring that a nuisance is 

not created, is the responsibility of the applicant / developer and their 
professional advisors / consultants. Developers should, therefore, fully 
appreciate the importance of obtaining competent professional advice. In all 
cases, the Council retains its rights under the Section 79 of the Environment 
Protection Act 1990, in respect of the enforcement of Statutory Nuisance. 

 
8) This permission does not give consent to any advertisement(s) intended to be 

displayed on the site for which separate Express Consent may be necessary 
under the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007 (as Amended/Revoked) 

 
9) You are advised that offsite highway works required in connection with this 

permission are under the control of the Council’s Technical Services Division 
and will require an agreement under section 278 of the Highway Act 1980. 
These works should be carried out before first occupation of the development. 
All such works will be undertaken by the Council at the applicant’s expense. 
You should contact Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk to progress this matter. 

 
10) The following highway works will be agreed under the terms of Section 278 of 

the Highways Act 1980: new vehicular access/egress from the internal 
roundabout within Ashwood Business Park - from a fourth arm of the existing 
roundabout, with footway and cycleway connections to the existing 
footway/cycleway network within the business park, and any associated 
drainage, street lighting, signage, and line markings. 

 
11) Building materials or equipment shall not be stored on the highway unless 

otherwise agreed. You are advised to contact the Streetworks team on 0345 
600 6400 for Skips and Containers licences. 

 
12) You are advised to contact the Councils Lighting Section on 

HighwaysStreetLighting@northumberland.gov.uk before and during the 
construction period with respect of street lighting to ensure sufficient 
illumination levels of the public highway. 

 
13) In accordance with the Highways Act 1980 mud, debris or rubbish shall not be 

deposited on the Highway 
 
Date of Report: 10th February 2021 
Background Papers: Planning application file(s) 20/03097/FUL 
  

Page 31

http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Protection/Environmentalhealth/Businesses.aspx#toiletprovisioninfoodpremises
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Protection/Environmentalhealth/Businesses.aspx#toiletprovisioninfoodpremises


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Appeal Update Report 

Date: March 2021 

 

Planning Appeals 

Report of the Executive Director of Regeneration, Commercial and Economy 

Cabinet Member: Councillor JR Riddle 

 

Purpose of report 

For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This is a monthly 

report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area Council Planning Committee 

areas and covers appeals of Strategic Planning Committee.     

Recommendations 

To note the contents of the report in respect of the progress of planning appeals that have 

been submitted to and determined by the Planning Inspectorate. 

Link to Corporate Plan  

This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021 

where identified within individual planning applications and appeals. 

Key issues  

Each planning application and associated appeal has its own particular set of individual 

issues and considerations that have been taken into account in their determination, which 

are set out within the individual application reports and appeal decisions. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions 

Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

20/01188/OUT Outline application for erection of single dwelling 

house, all matters except access are reserved – land 

to south-west of Kirkheaton Farm, Kirkheaton 

Main issues: development in the open countryside; 

would not be sympathetic to the local character of the 

village; and the proposal would have a harmful impact 

upon the setting of heritage assets. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Yes 

20/00450/FUL Retrospective: External display area for temporary 

timber summer house including local landscaping 

(amended description) - In-House Inspired Room 

Design Ltd, Global House, Bridge End Industrial 

Estate, Hexham 

Main issues: harmful impact upon the character and 

appearance of the area and detrimental to visual 

amenity. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

20/02052/FUL Rear ground floor extension – Beulah House, 123 

Bondicar Terrace, Blyth 

Main issues: harm to the Conservation Area that is not 

outweighed by public benefits. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

Planning Appeals Split Decision 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused) 

Page 34



 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

20/01756/CLPROP Certificate of Lawful Proposed Development: 

Proposed change of use from agricultural building to 

dwellinghouse (Class C3) – land west of Hague 

Cottage, Wylam Wood Road, Wylam 

Main issues: the proposal is not permitted 

development. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No – 

claim 

refused 

 

Planning Casework Unit Referrals 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Planning Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date 
and decision 
level 

19/05017/OUT Outline permission for change of use of 

agricultural land and construction of 9 no. 

residential dwellings (including 22% 

affordable housing) - land east of Greycroft, 

West Thirston 

Main issues: development in the open 

countryside; adverse impact upon the historic 

character of the village; and would fail to 

preserve the West Thirston Conservation 

Area. 

27 August 2020 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

19/04938/FUL Resubmission of approved planning 

application 17/02932/FUL Erection of new 

building comprising of 12 self-contained 1 

bedroom apartments (use class C3) for 

specialised independent supported living with 

29 September 

2020 

Appeal against 

Page 35



 

associated external works and car parking – 

land between 86-90, Front Street East, 

Bedlington 

Main issues: appeal against non-

determination due to invalid application (no 

fee paid). 

non-determination 

20/01814/FUL Proposed alterations to site layout with 

parking changes, secure tool (and nursery 

materials) store position, hardstanding and 

size amended, new security gates and 

polytunnel amended – The Coop, Eachwick 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 

the Green Belt; store building is harmful to 

the rural character of the area; and fails to 

address concerns raised in respect of land 

contamination. 

2 November 2020 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

20/01233/VARYCO Removal of Condition 3 (holiday use) 

pursuant to planning permission 

16/03879/COU in order to allow use as 

principal dwellinghouse – The Coach House, 

Fenwicks Close Farm, Earsdon 

Main issues: would result in an isolated 

home in the countryside and would not be 

sustainable development. 

3 November 2020 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/01940/FUL Construction of single-storey dining room 

within courtyard – The Hemmel, Beal Bank, 

Warkworth 

Main issues: harm to the character and 

appearance of the existing building. 

11 November 

2020 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/00581/VARYCO Variation of conditions 2 (approved plans) 

and 4 (materials) pursuant to planning 

permission 17/03658/FUL in order to amend 

the flue position (to the front) and window 

materials (to be UPVC) and to remove the 

shutters. Removal of conditions 5 (landscape 

planting), 8 (boundary treatments) and 9 

(refuse strategy) - land south east of Lifeboat 

House, Haven Hill, Craster 

Main issues: design and materials are out of 

character with the street scene; and harm to 

the character and appearance of historic 

10 December 

2020 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

Page 36



 

buildings and the Northumberland Coast 

AONB. 

20/00395/FUL Change of use from former garden nursery to 

2 detached residential houses and 

associated access road – Fir Trees Nursery, 

Widdrington Station 

Main issues: harmful encroachment into the 

open countryside and rural character of the 

woodland plantation; lack of completed 

planning obligation to secure financial 

contribution to the Council’s Coastal 

Mitigation Service or other alternative 

mitigation; and insufficient information to 

assess risk from ground contamination and 

ground gas. 

23 December 

2020 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/00716/FUL Change of use of application site to 

equestrian use with erection of 10no stables, 

paddock area and gates/fencing to site 

frontage – land to south of Hartford Drive, 

Hartford Bridge 

Main issues: harm to heritage assets that is 

not outweighed by public benefits; drainage; 

and highway safety. 

 

18 January 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

18/02239/FUL Redevelopment of the former Marley Tiles 

Factory to provide a residential development 

of 105 houses (Use Class C3) with 

associated access, parking, landscaping and 

infrastructure (AMENDED description and 

site layout) - Marley Tile Factory, Lead Lane, 

Newlands 

Main issues: isolated development in the 

open countryside; inappropriate development 

in the Green Belt by virtue of causing 

substantial harm to the openness of the 

Green Belt and very special circumstances 

have not been demonstrated to outweigh 

harm; and the design of the development 

would be out of keeping with the character 

and appearance of the locality and does not 

deliver an appropriate form of sustainable 

design or development for the site. 

27 January 2021 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

 

20/02355/LBC Listed Building Consent for replacement of 9 February 2021 

Page 37



 

ground floor window with timber glazed 6 

over 6 door in west elevation – 1 Prudhoe 

Street, Alnwick 

Main issues: proposal would cause harm to 

the significance of the listed building that is 

not outweighed by public benefits. 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

19/04023/FUL Listed Building Consent for proposed 

demolition of flat roofed single storey 

extension and various internal alterations, 

formation of new external fire escape stair 

and doorways, extractor chimney to kitchen 

and flue pipe to roof, change of use of part of 

building to Cafe A3 (remainder to remain 

office accommodation). Replacement 

windows and new rooflights – 1-5 Bridge 

Street, Berwick-upon-Tweed 

Main issues: harm to listed building that has 

not been demonstrated as necessary or 

justified. Delegated Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: Refuse 

9 February 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

19/04024/LBC Listed Building Consent for proposed 

demolition of flat roofed single storey 

extension and various internal alterations, 

formation of new external fire escape stair 

and doorways, extractor chimney to kitchen 

and flue pipe to roof, change of use of part of 

building to Cafe A3 (remainder to remain 

office accommodation). Replacement 

windows and new rooflights – 1-5 Bridge 

Street, Berwick-upon-Tweed 

Main issues: harm to listed building that has 

not been demonstrated as necessary or 

justified. Delegated Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: Refuse 

9 February 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

19/02291/FUL Retention of 4no open gazebos 

(retrospective) - 1 Thornbrae, Alnmouth 

Road, Alnwick 

Main issues: the proposal would have a 

significant adverse impact on residential 

amenity as a result of antisocial behaviour 

and the impacts of noise arising from the use 

of the proposed gazebos. 

9 February 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

Page 38



 

Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions 

Enforcement Appeals Allowed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

18/01344/ENDEVT 

 

Bridgend Caravan Park, Wooler 

Main issues: one Enforcement Notice appealed by 

three parties in respect of operational development to 

provide extra bases for residential static caravans with 

associated services 

No 

18/00489/ENDEVT Land at Moor Farm Estate, Station Road, Stannington 

Main issues: unauthorised waste reclamation yard and 

siting of multiple shipping containers 

Yes 

Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

18/01524/LISTED Church View, Slaley 

Main issues: solar panels installed in 2006 without 

planning permission - requests for removal have been 

unsuccessful. 

No 

18/00033/NOAPL 98 Millerfield, Acomb 

Main issues: development has been undertaken 

based on plans refused under planning application 

17/00072/FUL 

No 

Enforcement Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date  

18/00223/ENDEVT Land to the West of Buildings Farm, 

Whittonstall, Consett, DH8 9SB 

1 February 2021 

Page 39



 

Main issues: material change of use of the 

land from agricultural for the siting of 4 

caravans 

18/00223/ENDEVT Land to the West of Buildings Farm, 

Whittonstall, Consett, DH8 9SB 

Main issues: material change of use of the 

land for the siting of one caravan and the 

erection of fencing in excess of 2 metres in 

height 

1 February 2021 

Inquiry and Hearing Dates 

Reference No Description and address Inquiry/hearing 
date and 
decision level 

19/00247/FUL Construction of a publicly accessible 

landmark, commissioned to commemorate 

Queen Elizabeth II and the Commonwealth - 

land at Cold Law, Kirkwhelpington 

Main issues: development in the open 

countryside which fails to recognise the 

intrinsic character and nature of the 

countryside. 

Inquiry date: 9 

March 2021 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

 

 

Page 40



 

 

Implications 

Policy Decisions on appeals may affect future 
interpretation of policy and influence policy reviews 

Finance and value for money There may be financial implications where costs are 
awarded by an Inspector or where Public Inquiries 
are arranged to determine appeals 

Legal It is expected that Legal Services will be instructed 
where Public Inquiries are arranged to determine 
appeals 

Procurement None 

Human resources None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment attached?)  

❏ Yes 

✓ No 

❏ N/a  
 

Planning applications and appeals are considered 
having regard to the Equality Act 2010 

Risk assessment None 

Crime and disorder 
As set out in individual reports and decisions 

Customer consideration None 

Carbon reduction Each application/appeal may have an impact on the 
local environment and have been assessed 
accordingly 

Wards All where relevant to application site relating to the 
appeal 

Background papers 

Planning applications and appeal decisions as identified within the report. 

Report author and contact details 

Elizabeth Sinnamon 
Senior Planning Manager - Development Management 
01670 625542 
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

S106 Agreements Update Report 

November 2020 – January 2021 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Regeneration, Commercial and Economy 

Cabinet Member: Councillor JR Riddle 

 

Purpose of report 

For Members’ information to report the agreement monitoring and collection of s106 

contributions in the planning process.  This is a monthly report and relates to 

agreements throughout Northumberland during the previous monthly period.    

Recommendations 

To note the contents of the report in respect of agreement monitoring and collection of 

s106 contributions.   

Link to Corporate Plan  

This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-

2021.   

Key issues  

 

This month’s report provides details on new S106 agreements and unilateral 

undertakings completed during the months of November 2020 through to January 2021.  

Information is given on funds available and where this information can be found on the 

Council’s website. Also included is an update on the Infrastructure Funding Statement 

that we have recently produced which reports on all obligations secured during the 

previous financial year of 2019-2020.  

 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



 

New Agreements   

 

November –
January    

New Agreements completed  

20/00701/VARYCO   Land North East of Bridgeford View, Bellingham   

20/01514/S106a   Blyth Golf Club   

20/01451/FUL West Street Berwick    

17/02588/FUL     Former Police Station Morpeth   

20/01948/NONMAT Beachway Blyth 

20/01767/FUL Farley Cottage Ellington    

20/01175/FUL Land East of Home Farm Cottages, Crag Mill Road, Belford 

 20/01798/AGTRES Agricultural Buildings west of South Meadows Farm, South Road, 
Belford 

20/01987/AGTRS  
 

As above  

19/02368/FUL 
 

Land at Cut Throat Plantation, Tughall Grange Farm, Swinhoe,  

20/01175/FUL 
 

Land East of Home Farm Cottages, Crag Mill Road, Belford 
 

20/02945/VARYC Land at rear of the Blue Bell Hotel, West Street, Belford 

20/00999/FUL 
 

Land South of the Plough, Front Street, Ellington, Morpeth,   

20/01868/FUL 
 

Land East of Hillside, Gloster Hill, Amble 

20/01076/FUL     South West of Northgate Hospital, A192 District boundary to Northgate roundabout, 
Morpeth, 

19/04108/OUT Percy Woods Golf Club 

20/01881/FUL Land to SW of 17 Carlton Avenue Blyth   

20/03629/S106a 
 

Land at Clifton Caravan Centre, Clifton, Morpeth 

 

 Page 44



Contributions Received November – January    

 

Development  Type of Contribution Amounts Received 

15/00901/out SWS   Planning Co-ordinator £5000 

20/00174/FUL Coastal Mitigation Service £6900 

20/01207/FUL  Coastal Mitigation Service £600 

20/01396 Coastal Mitigation Service £1033 

18/02250/FUL Education £36000 

19/00442 Coastal Mitigation Service £1800 

19/04303/FUL Coastal Mitigation Service £2186 

18/00520 Coastal Mitigation Service £1200 

20/0999 
 

Coastal Mitigation Service £3075 

17/02302 
 

Coastal Mitigation Service £5400 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Awards Paid Out  

November  - January  

Project Amount Paid  

Humshaugh Cricket   Mower equipment   £4727 

Blyth Town Council  Ogle Drive Play Area £26250 

Wall Parish Council  Goal Posts  £1312 

Page 45



 

 

Funds Available  

Members are advised that full details of all S106 funding held and received by the Council is 

available for viewing on the Council's website.  

Please see the link below.  

https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning/Section106.aspx#section106contributions 

 

 

This table is updated quarterly. The payments are a mixture of commuted sums, site specific 

amounts and infrastructure amounts to mitigate the impact on the development. Financial 

contributions are made at different stages of a development, often upon commencement and/or 

phased at different 'trigger' points  

 

The list shows the breakdown of funds in their various ringfenced categories and amounts 

identified with an Asterix* are available for external organisations to apply for.  This applies 

specifically to affordable housing funds or sport and play funding.   

 

 

Any queries on this please contact the Council's S106 Officer  

heather.proudlock@northumberland.gov.uk  

 

 

Infrastructure Funding Statement  
Northumberland County Council are a 'contribution receiving authority' as we receive 

money or in-kind obligations from Section 106 agreements. In accordance with the CIL 

legislation we must publish a yearly statement known as an Infrastructure Funding 

Statement (IFS) to report on developer contributions. 

 

 

The first ever NCC Statement, was published on the website. It covers the period 1st 

April 2019 to the 31st March 2020. It can be found on the Council's website here  View 

the NCC Infrastructure Funding Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 46

https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning/Section106.aspx#section106contributions
mailto:heather.proudlock@northumberland.gov.uk
https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/NorthumberlandCountyCouncil/media/Planning-and-Building/S106NorthumberlandInfrastructureFundingStatement.pdf
https://www.northumberland.gov.uk/NorthumberlandCountyCouncil/media/Planning-and-Building/S106NorthumberlandInfrastructureFundingStatement.pdf


 

 
 

 

 

Implications 

Policy Section 106 obligations are in line with 
policy unless other stated in individual 
applications. 

Finance and value for money As stated on individual applications   

Legal Legal Services will be instructed to assist 
with the preparation and monitoring of the 
obligations 

Procurement None 

Human resources None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment attached?)  

❏ Yes 

✓ No 

❏ N/a  

 

Each application will have regard to the 
Equality Act 2010 

Risk assessment None 

Crime and disorder As set out in individual reports and 
decisions 

Customer consideration None 

Carbon reduction As set out in individual reports and 
decisions 

Wards All  

Background papers 

Planning applications and 106 Agreements  
Page 47



Report author and contact details 

Elizabeth Sinnamon 
Senior Planning Manager - Development Management 
01670 625542 
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	1 PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT A VIRTUAL STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	5 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	6 20/03097/FUL
	7 APPEALS UPDATE
	8 S106 AGREEMENTS UPDATE REPORT

